
AT&T Kentucky 
601 W. Chestnut Street 
Room 407 
Louisville. KY 40203 

T: 502 582 8219 
F: 502 582 1573 
rnary keyer@att corn 

February 13,2008 

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS 

Ms. Beth O’Donnell 
Executive Director 
Public Service Commission 
21 1 Sower Boulevard 
P. 0. Box 615 
Frankfort, KY 40602 

Re: Adoption by NPCR, Inc. d/b/a Nextel Partners of the Existing 
Interconnection Agreement By and Between BellSouth 
Telecommunications, Inc. and Sprint Communications Company Limited 
Partnership, Sprint Communications Company L.P., Sprint Spectrum L.P.” 
dated January 1,2001 
PSC 2007-00256 

---.- Submission of Additional Supplemental Authority 

Dear Ms. O’Donnell: 

In its Supplemental Submission of February 8, 2008, AT&T Kentucky expressed 
its expectation that an expedited resolution by the Federal Communications 
Commission (“FCC”) of the issues presented in AT&T’s FCC Petition may render 
unnecessary any further proceedings in this docket. In that connection, AT&T Kentucky 
hereby submits as supplemental authority the attached Order that the FCC released on 
February 7, 2008, in In Re Ameritech Operating Companies Tariff FCC No. 2 et a/., 
Transmittal No. 1666. The FCC’s Order states (at 78), 

Petitioners [including Sprint Nextel] remain free to file a complaint if they 
believe that AT&T has not complied with the commitments it made in the 
A?&T/Be//South Merger Order. Indeed, the Commission stands ready to 
enforce such commitments should it receive complaints that AT&T is not 
complying with its commitments. 

Accordingly, even if the Commission were to conclude - as AT&T Kentucky 
contends it should not - that it has authority to enforce the FCC Merger Commitment at 
issue here, the Commission should allow the FCC to decide the potentially dispositive 
questions AT&T has asked it to decide before conducting any further proceedings in this 
docket. If the FCC’s determinations do not yield a complete resolution of the parties’ 
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disagreements concerning the Complainants’ porting request, this Commission would 
then decide such questions of state law as may remain. 

The original and ten ( I O )  copies of this letter are enclosed for filing. Thank you 
for your assistance in this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosures 

cc: Parties of record 
704306 
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Before tlie 
Federal Communications Commission 

Washington, D.C. 20554 

In the Matter of 

Ameritech Operating Companies 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 2 

BellSouth Telecoiiiinuiiications, hic. 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 1 

Nevada Bell Telephone Company 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 1 

Pacific Bell Telephone Company 
Tariff F.C.C. No. I 

Southern New England Telephone Company 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 39 

Southwestem Bell Telephone Coinpaiiy 
TariffF.C.C. No. 73 

Adopted: February 7,2008 

) 
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) 

Transmittal No. 1 12 1 

ORDER 

Released: February 7,2008 

By tlie Commission: 

I. INTRODUCTION 

1. On Jaiiuaiy 24, 2008, AT&T Inc. (AT&,T) filed the above-referenced tariff transmittals on 
behalf of its six operating subsidiaries: Aineritech Operating Companies; BellSouth 
Telecoi~nLiiiications, Inc., Nevada Bell Telephone Company, Pacific Bell Telephone Company, 
Sonthem New England Telephone Company, and Southwestern Bell Telephone Company (Broadband 
Tariffs). In its tariff revisions, AT&T is proposing to withdraw certain braadhand transinissioii services 
from its operating subsidiaries’ access tariffs pursuant to tlie relief granted by tlie Comnissioii in the 
AT&T Enter-j~ise Broadband Forbear-once Oder.‘ Specifically, AT&T’s proposed revisions seek to 
withdraw a number of broadband services from its tariff, including Frame Relay. ATM, Ethernet, 
Remote Network Access, SONET, Optical Network and Wave-Based services, with the exception of 
certain Frame Relay and ATM services operating below 200 Kbps in each direction. 

2. We note that Time Warner Telecoin Iiic., COMPTEL, and Sprint Nextel Corporation 
(collectively tlie “Petitioners”) filed petitions to reject or suspend and investigate previous tariff revisioiis 

‘ Petition of ATdtT, liic. for For.beai.aiice (Jiider 47 U S.C. 3 16(l(c)jkoni Title 11 and Cotnputer lnqitir-y Rules with 
Respect to Its Biaaribarid Services and Petifioii oj BellSouth Corporation jor Forbearance Under 47 U S. C. 3 I6O(c) 
fr-on1 Title IJ arid Coinpiiter ~ t i ~ ~ i i i . ) ~  Rules wifh Respect fo I t s  Bi.oadilanci Sei.vices, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 
22 FC‘C Rcd 1870.5 (2007) (ATAT Enterprise Broadbarid Forbearatice Order). 
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that AT&T liad filed on Januaiy 7,2008.’ Those petitions claimed that AT&T iiiay not witlidraw any 
broadband tariffs until tlie expiration of the conditions established in tlie AT&T/Bel/South Merger 
Order.’ Petitioners argued that tlie terms of a number of the merger coniniitments, such as special access 
merger commitments iiuniber 4 aiid 5 require tliat AT&T maintain  tariff^.^ Moreover, Petitioners argued 
that other coinmitmeiits, such as merger commitment number 7, which requires mediation or accelerated 
docket treatment of disputes conccining tariffed services, would be rendered meaningless without 
publicly available tarifk5 On Jariuavy 18,2008, AT&T withdrew its tariff filing. 

3. As previously noted, on January 24,2008, AT&,T filed revised tariff transmittals, which 
propose to withdraw inany of tlie same broadband services froin its operating subsidiaries’ access tariffs, 
as it liad in its earlier tariff transmittals.6 In its January 24 filing, AT&T included iiew langtmge 
expressly recognizing its obligation to comply with the commitments of tlie AT<!$ T/Be/ZSozrtlz Merger 
Order. Section 2 in all of tlie above-referenced tariffs iiicludes tlie following language: 

Pursuant to tlie detariffing authority granted by the Cornmission in Memorandum 
Opinion and Order, FCC 07-1 80 (released October 12,2007), certain broadband 
services have been withdrawn from this tariff. When offering these services through 
non-tariffed arrangements, the Telephone Company will abide by all of the special 
access merger commitments set forth in Memorandum Opinion and Order, 
FCC 06-159 at Appendix F (released March 26,2007), including but not limited 
to commitments that contain references to “tariffs.” such as those addressing pricing, 
dispute resolution, and access service ratio terms. The detariffiiig of these services 
does not diminish or supersede any of those special access merger comniitments. 

4. On Januaiy 3 1, 2008, Petitioners filed petitions to reject or alternatively suspend aiid 
investigate tlie Broadband Tariffs.’ Petitioners repeat their previous claims that, for example, AT&T 
may not witlidraw any broadband tariffs until the expiration of the conditions established in tlie 
A T&T/Be//Sozrth Merger Order and that other merger conditions would be rendered ineaiiingless without 
publicly available tariffs.’ In addition, Petitioners claim that detariffing these services will remove them 
from a customer’s Managed Value Plan (IVLVP) and cause AT&T to violate its merger commitiiient not 
to raise rates.’ The Petitioners also contend that customers who subscribe to an Mvp can only meet their 
Minimum Annual Revenue Corninitmeiit (MARC) “based solely 011 services set forth in tlie tariff’’ or 

Petition of Time Warner Telecoin Inc. and COMPTEL, to Reject or, in the Alternative, Suspend and Investigate 
.“”“~“”.“ll” 

Tariff Filings, Transniittal Nos. 1664, 1 1  19, 174,383,963, and 3249 (filed Jan. 11,2008) (TWT/COMPTEL 
Petition); Petition of Sprint Nextcl Corporation to Re.ject or Alternatively Suspend and Investigate, Transmittal Nos. 
1664, I 11 9, 174, 383, 96.3, and 3249 (filed Jan. 14, 2008) (SprintNextel Petition). 

’ See TWTICOMPTEL, Petition at 2-4; SprinUNextel Petition at 3-6 (citing AT&T hzc. and BellSoiith Coipo~.ation 
.4pj~lic~1tio~i, f~r Tralisjkr of Control, Memorandum Opinion and Order, 22 FCC Rcd 5662 (2007) (A  T&T/BrllSoutli 
Merger Urder); Order on Reconsideration, 12 FCC Rcd 6285 (2007)). 

See, e.g., TWTICOMPTEL, Petition at 2. 

‘ I L L  at 2-3. 

was rcmoved from its tariff filing of January 24, 2008. See, e g . ,  Southwcstern Bell Telephone Company, 
Transmittal No. 3252 (filed Feb. 5, 2008). 

Petition of Time Warncr Tcleconi Inc. and COMPTEL to Reject or, in the Alternative, Suspend and Investigate 
Tariff Filings, Transmittal Nos. 1666, 1121, 176, 385. 965, and 3251 (filed Jan. 31, 2008) (TWT/COMPTEL, 
Petition 11); Petition of Sprint Ncxtel Corporation to Reject or Alternatively Suspend and Investigate, Transmittal 
Nos. 1666, 1121, 176, 385, 965, and 3251 (filed Jan. 31, 2008) (SprintNextel Petition IT). 

On February 5. 2008, AT&T filed a correction to its tariff transmittals reinstating tariff material that inadvertently 

7 

SprintNextel Petition TI at 3-  6; TWT/COMPTEL. Petition 11 at 3-7. 

’ Sprint/Ncxtel Petition I1 at  6; TWTKOMPTEL Pctition I1 at 8-9. 

2 
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AT&T will be in violation of section 61.54Cj) of the Coinniission’s mles.’” Finally. Sprint also argues 
that AT&T’s detariffing of its Dedicated SONET Ring Service included the DSl and DS3 port 
connections that were offered as part of that service, which exceeds tlie scope of forbearance granted in 
the A T&T Enterprise Broadband Forheal-arice 01-der. ‘I 

5 .  On February 6,2008, AT&T filed ai opposition to the TWT/COMPTEL and SprintNextel 
petitions.” AT&T argues that “[dletariffing is conipletely consistent with [the AI’&T/BellSo~ith] special 
access merger conimitments, all of which AT&,T can and will fully i~nplement.”’~ In addition, AT&T 
makes clear that it “fiilly intends to enable existing MVP customers to continue receiving all of the 
credits on eligible MVP services to which they are entitled for tlie duration of their MVP teiins, even 
when those services are detariffed pursuant to the [AT& T Enterprise] Brondbnnd Forbearance Order.”“ 
Finally, AT&T responds that the DS 1 and DS3 port connections “are not ‘traditional TDM-based DS 1 
and DS3 services,”’ but rather “are optical-electronic ‘interfaces’ on AT&T’s SONET rings, to which a 
customer may connect a separntely pui~cl~nsed service, such as a traditional TDM-based DSl or DS3 
sew ice .” I j 

11. DISCUSSION 

6. Because AT&T has witlidrawii its January 7, 2008, tariff transmittals, the petitiolis opposing 
AT&,T’s January 7 tariff revisions are moot and are therefore dismissed. The claims made by 
TWT/COMPTEL, and Sprint/Nextel in their latest petitions opposiiig the Broadband Tariffs do not meet 
the standards for rejection or suspension of a tariff, as discussed below, and they are denied.“ 

7. The Coiiunissioii inay only reject a tariff filed by a carrier if the filing is “SO patently a 
nullity as a matter of substantive law, that administrative efficiency and justice are furthered by 
obviating any docket at the threshold rather than opening a futile d~cke t . ” ’~  Under this standard, we find 
that Petitioners have niade no showing that the Broadband Tariffs are “patently a nullity as a matter of 
substantive law” or that they are otherwise unlawfiil on their face. To the contrary, these tariffs 
expressly provide that AT&T will comply fully with its obligations under the AT&T/BellSozrth Merger 
Order.’8 Jii addition, under applicable Coinmissioii rules, tariffs filed by a price cap LEC pursuant to the 
requirements of section 6 1.42(d)(4)(ii) are considered prin7a“fUcie lawful and will not be suspended by 
the Coinmission unless the petition requesting suspension shows each of the following: (1) that there is 
a high probability the tariff would be found unlawful after investigation; (2) that any unreasonable rate 

- ~ - - - - -  
I(’ Sprint/Ncxtcl Pctition I 1  at 6 (citing 47 C.F.R. S 61.54Cj)); TWTKOMPTEL Petition I1 at 9 (same). 

” Sprint/Nextel Petition II at 7-8 

I’ AT&T lnc.’s Motion to Strikc Joint Petition of COMPTEL and Tinie Warner Teleeoni Inc. and AT&T Ine.’s 
Opposition to Petition of Sprint Nextel and Joint Petition of COMPTEL and Time Warner Telecoin Inc., Transmittal 
Nos. 1666, 112 1, 176, 38.5, 96.5, and 325 1 (filed Feb. 6, 2008) (AT&T Motion and Opposition). AT&T’s filing also 
inclnded a motion to strike the TWTKOMPTEL petition alleging that it had riot been properly served. See id at 1- 
3. 

l 3  Id. at 3-8. 

Id. at 7. With respect to the alleged violation of section 61 3 4  of the Commission’s rules, AT&T asserts that its 

Id. at 9-10 (emphasis in original). 

Because we deny the TWTKOMPTEL Petition IT, the AT&T motion to strike is moot and is dismissed. 

h.iuiiicipa1 L,iglit Bds. I>, FPC, 450 F.2d 1341, 1.346 (D.C. Cir. 1971); cert deienied, 40.5 U.S. 989 (1972); see also 

actions are consistcnt with Commission precedent. See id. at 8 11.26. 

16 

Capital Network Syx, IIIL:. 11. FCC, 28 F.3d 201, 204 (D.C. Cir. 1994); Americaii Broadcmting Cos. V. FCC, 663 
F.2d 133, 1.38 (D.C. Cir. 1980). 

See szyra para. 3. 
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would not be corrected in a subsequent filing; (3) that irreparable injury will result if the tariff filing is 
not suspended; and (4) that the suspension would not otherwise be contrary to the public i~iterest.’~ 
T~LIS ,  if any one of these prongs is not met, the Commission will not suspend a proposed tariff. For 
example, there is no showing here of irreparable injury. In its filing, AT&T coiifirms that all of tlie 
seivices being withdrawn from the tariff will still be available on the same rates, teiins and conditions, 
and that AT&T will continue to abide by all of the special access merger commitments set forth in 
Appendix F of tlie AT&T/BellSozith Merger Order..” Moreover, we find that AT&,T’s tariff revisions to 
its MVP discount plan do not alter any customer’s ability to claim discounts under that plan as it existed 
prior to those revisions.” T l i ~ ,  Petitioners have not show that irreparable injury will result if the tariff is 
not suspended.” 

8. Moreover, Petitioners remain free to file a complaint if they believe that AT&T has not 
complied with the coininitinents it made in the AT&T/BellSouth Merger Order. Indeed, tlie Coinmission 
stands ready to enforce such commitments should it receive complaints that AT&T is not complying 
with its coinmitments. 

111. ORDERING CLAUSES 

9. Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED that, pursuant to section 204(a) of the Communications Act 
of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 0 204(a), tlie Januay 11 and Januay 14,2008, petitions of Time Wainer 
Telecom, Inc., COMPTEL. and SpriiWNextel Corporation ARE DISMISSED AS MOOT. 

10. IT IS FTJRTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to section 204(a) of the Communications Act of 
1934, as amended, 47 I.I.S.C. 4 204(a), the January 3 1,2008, petitions of Time Warner Telecom, Inc., 
COMPTEL and Sprint/Nextel Coiporation ARE DENIED. 

1 1. IT IS FIJRTFIER ORDERED that, pursuant to section 204(a) of the Conununications Act of 
1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 3 204(a), the Febiuaiy 6,2008, motion to strike of AT&T Inc. IS 
DISMISSED AS MOOT. 

47 C.F.R. $ 1.773(a)(v). 19 

20 See Anieritecli Operating Companies Tariff F.C.C. No. 2, section 2.1.13; BellSouth Teleconimunications, Inc. 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 1, scction 2.1.14; Nevada Bell Telephone Company Tariff F.C.C. No. 1, section 2.1.14; Pacific 
Bell Telephone Company, Tariff F.C.C. No. 1, section 2.1” 14; The Southern New England Telephone Company, 
Tariff F.C.C. No. 39; section 2.1 .H; Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, Tariff F.C.C. No. 73, section 2.1 .lo. 
See also AT&T Motioii and Opposition at 4, 7-8. 

’’ In fact, AT&T filed a correction to help make clear that the tariff revisions do not alter customers’ rights to 
discounts under the MVP plan. See supra note 6. And AT&T affirms that existing MVP customers and the 
discounts that they receive will be unaffccted for the duration of thcir MVP terms, cven when those seivices are 
detari ffed pursuant to the AT& T Etzterprise Rivadband Forlxarmce Order. See supra para. 5. For these reasons, 
we find that the Petitioners have not demonstrated irreparable harm with respect to their claims regarding whether 
the tariff revisions violate section 61 5 4  of the Commission’s rules. We note that the MVP plan already relied on 
rate elements not included in  the interstatc tariff for purposes of the access ratio calculation. See, eg., Southwestern 
Bell Telephone Company, TariffF.C.C. No. 73, section 38.3. Thus, we find that the Petitioners likewise have not 
demonstrated that the Broadband Tariffs are “patently a nullity as a matter of substantive law” or that they are 
othcrwisc uiilawful on thcir facc. 

-- We likewise find that Sprinthlextel has not demonstrated irreparable h a m  with rcgard to the dctariffing of 
ATSrT’s Dedicated SONET Ring Service. Moreover, the DSl and DS3 port connections appear simply to be a type 
of interface offered as part of the Dedicated SONET Ring Service, not DS 1 and DS3 services in and of themselves, 
such that the detariffing of Dedicated SONET Ring Service would be consistent with the AT&T Etiteiprise 
Broucll,ond Forbenratice Order. See AT&T Motion and Opposition at 9-1 0. 

7? 

4 
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12. IT IS FIJRTHER ORDERED that, pursuant to section 204(a) of the Comnunications Act of 
1934, as aiiiended, 47 [J.S.C. 204(a), this Order IS ADOPTED. 

FEDERM COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 

Marlene H. Dortch 
Secretary 

5 


